
26 April 2016 Planning Commission minutes.    BScholin, Secretary 

    Planning Commission of Pine City, Minnesota 
Minutes of Regular Meeting: 26 April 2016 

 
 
 
 
Commissioners: Bombard, Christopherson, D’Aigle, Ovick, Sauter, Scholin 
City Staff / Officials: Cammilleri, Johnson 
Absent: Jahnz, Skluzacek, Pederson, student representative LeBrun 
 
 
Christopherson called the meeting to order at 6:30pm, with the Pledge of Allegiance. He called for a moment of silence in memory of 

Dan Rydberg, long-time commissioner who died recently. Minutes of the February 23rd meeting were approved as written, on a 
motion by D’Aigle, seconded by Bombard. 

 
 
Public Hearing on City-Initiated Subdivision Proposal: The City is proposing the subdivision of its parcel south and west of the 

National Guard Armory and the Golden Horizons building. This current parcel comprises Hill Top Cemetery, Hill Top Park, 
the planned extension of Eighth St SW, and some largely undeveloped land. The subdivision would allow the sale and 
development of a portion of this parcel, as well as properly establishing the street rights-of-way and the bounds of the 
cemetery. There is a potential developer interested in a portion of the property at this time. 

 
The public hearing was called to order at 6:32pm, to take public input on this proposal. Johnson reviewed the history of the 
parcel, and explained the proposal, including the surveyed plat, showing the proposed new parcels. This plan has been 
discussed at Public Works and Parks and Recreation. The alignment of Golf Ave SW was also better established, as was 
Wilcox Ave SW. There will be later discussion of zoning, should the subdivision proceed. Jim France asked if there is any sort 
of deadline for development of the parcels, but Johnson said not. There were no more comments from the public. The public 
hearing was closed at 6:39pm.  
 

Consideration of City-Proposed Subdivision: Scholin expressed concern about the grade required to construct the proposed extension 
of Eighth St. Cammilleri stated that the surveyor did not think the grade would be an issue. Following brief additional 
discussion, D’Aigle made a motion recommending this subdivision be approved. Ovick seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
Public Hearing on Foster Planned Unit Development Proposal: Thomas Foster has proposed the creation of a Planned Unit 

Development on his property at 420 Second Ave NE, in an R-2 zone. This PUD would allow the development of six single-
family townhomes and common space on a 1.7acre parcel made up of six existing platted lots, some vacated right-of-way, and 
a government lot bounded by the Snake River and Cross Lake 

 
The Public Hearing was called to order at 6:44pm, to take public input on this proposal. Cammilleri explained the proposal, 
since Johnson is related to Foster. He explained that the timeline for approval would allow tabling this for further information, 
should the Commission so desire. The PUD name is missing, as are street names. There are no designated open space, 
sidewalks or driveways, and the City has not seen any covenants, trusts, deed restrictions, or agreements at this point. There is 
also no lighting plan, or any delineation of elevations for flooding concerns.  
 
Due to the designation of the lake, there are no significant shorelands restrictions, and this proposal seems to fit with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s stated desire for infill in this neighborhood. Loren Samuelson, a neighboring landowner, expressed 
concern over the roadway width in that area, and over fire safety, with existing limitations on accessibility. He questioned the 
side yard width, and tree removal. He also asked about elevation issues, and stated that a portion of the parcel is currently 
underwater. He asked that the City obtain additional road right-of-way from property to the north, but that landowner was 
not in favor of that.  
 
Tom Foster explained a few things about his proposal. He stated that he plans to change the footprint of some of the houses, 
and vary the garage locations. He stated that he plans nice, high-quality, construction, in single or one-and-one-half stories. He 
is currently meeting with an engineer to work out driveways, etc, and is working on developer’s agreements. He stated that it 
would be tough to make any money on less than six units, and that his target audience is retirees, with a target price of 
$369,000-389,000.  
 
Cammilleri also pointed out an issue with one of the street vacations that will need to be addressed. Mary Jo Gurney 
expressed concerns over damage to roadways by construction equipment. Carole Samuelson asked about the water issues in 
the area. Cammilleri said he was not aware of any special issues, but there would need to be approval of drainage plans. 
Gurney also asked if the wastewater lift station would handle the added flow. Cammilleri stated that the PW Superintendent 
did not believe there would be an issue with that, but that it will be investigated. Johnson explained lot width requirements, to 
answer a question from the audience. There being no further comments, Christopherson closed the hearing at 7:14pm. 

 
 
Consideration of Foster PUD Proposal: Sauter asked if the development was going to be restricted to seniors, and Foster said no, but 

that they are his target market. There was concern expressed by Commission members over taking action without full 
information available.  

 



26 April 2016 Planning Commission minutes.    BScholin, Secretary 

Following brief discussion, Scholin made a motion to table this item until next month, pending the receipt of required information. 
D’Aigle seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

 
 
 
Public Hearing on Pine County Conditional Use Permit Request: Pine County has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

development of an indoor storage building on the grounds of the Court House, at 635 Northridge Drive NE, in a GB district. 
The building is proposed to be used to store miscellaneous equipment for the Sheriff’s Office and STS, and possibly other 
County items. 

 
 This hearing was called to order at 7:21pm, to allow for public comment on this proposal. Peter Umbreit was present on behalf 

of the County. Johnson explained the proposal, including the proposed site sketch. He did not find any conditions, other than 
boilerplate, which staff felt would be necessary. There were questions about drainage and requests for other information. 

 
 There being no further comment, Christopherson closed the public hearing at 7:29pm. 
 
 
Consideration of Pine County CUP Proposal: After brief discussion, Ovick made a motion to recommend that the Council grant this 

requested CUP. Bombard seconded the motion. Scholin asked about siding and appearance, but Johnson stated that the MDO does 
not require anything special in this district. Umbreit stated that the siding would be vinyl, but would match as closely as 
possible the color of the main building. Sauter asked if there could be a brick veneer, to make it look less like a residential 
structure, but there was other feeling expressed that color is the only important consideration. Ovick amended his motion to 
include a close siding color match, and Bombard agreed. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
Public Hearing on City Proposal to Modify the MDO: The City is proposing that language be added to the Municipal Development 

Ordinance to allow the development of brew pubs and breweries within the CBD, GB, HB, MXU, TI-1, and TI-2 districts, and 
wineries within the A-O district. There has been interest expressed in developing such uses, but they are not, at this time, 
allowed in any district. This hearing was called at 7:35pm to take public input on adding this language. 

 
 Johnson explained the proposal, and the language changes that staff and the Ordinance Review Committee are proposing. He 

asked that the Commission consider the appropriate districts, since all commercial districts are now included. It was also 
explained that there are a number of changes needed to the liquor licensing ordinances, before this process is complete. Jim 
France asked about location restrictions, and the feeling was that that belongs in the licensing area. There being no further 
comment, the hearing was closed at 7:45pm. 

 
Consideration of MDO Modification to Allow Brew Pubs, Breweries, and Wineries: After brief discussion, Sauter made a motion to 

recommend the MDO modifications as drafted. Ovick seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
 
 
Innovative Basement Systems Development Site Plan Request: Keith Johnson of Innovative Basement Systems has requested 

Development Site Plan approval for his proposed development at 1575 Airwaves Rd NE. Staff have prepared proposed 
findings of fact and Draft Resolution P16-10, recommending approval of this plan with ten conditions. Johnson explained that 
this is a revision of the earlier site plan approved last year. BJ Voss of Voss Builders was present to explain what is planned, 
since his company has been contracted to do the construction. Johnson stated that the Ordinance points out traffic patterns as 
a consideration in site plan approval, and he believes this meets those requirements, though there are some concerns. A 
second consideration is that the development does not harm adjacent properties, and after a redesign of drainage, Johnson 
believes it now does. He reviewed the ten conditions that staff believe should be included.  

 
Ovick made a motion to recommend approval of the resolution as written, D’Aigle seconded, and the resolution passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
City Council Feedback: Scholin reported that the Council had approved the modifications to the zoning map that the Commission 

recommended in February.  
 
 
Commissioners’ Concerns: There were concerns expressed by Skluzacek, through Johnson, that there are too many townhomes in the 

City, and that the soccer association is again in need of a location for this summer. Ovick asked that the Commission members 
contribute what is needed to fund a plaque in honor of Dan Rydberg. Johnson volunteered to coordinate this. 

 
 
City Planner's Comments: Johnson said he is looking forward to receipt of the hotel study, which he is eager to share with developers. 
 
 
There being no further business, Christopherson declared the meeting adjourned at 8:01pm. 


